
Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mr G K Bankes 
Direct Dial: (01257) 515123 
E-mail address: gordon.bankes@chorley.gov.uk 
Your Ref:  
Our Ref: GKB/AJS 
Doc ID:  

Date: 19 December 2005  
 

Chief Executive: 
Jeffrey W Davies  MA LLM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 

 

A meeting of the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Panel is to be held in the Committee Room, 

Town Hall, Chorley on Thursday, 5th January, 2006 commencing at 6.30 pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 1. Apologies for absence   

 
 2. Declarations of Any Interests   

 
  Members of the Panel are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal 

interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the 
Members Code of Conduct.  If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, then the 
individual Member should not participate in a discussion on the matter and must 
withdraw from the Council Chamber and not seek to influence a decision on the 
matter. 
 
 

 3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

  To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny held on 10 November 2005 (enclosed) 
 
 

 4. Refuse and Recycling Collection Services   
 

  The Head of Environmental Services has been invited to attend the meeting to discuss 
the Councils refuse and recycling collection service and the recent difficulties being 
experienced by some residents.  
 

 5. Management of the Councils Cemeteries Service   
 

  The Head of Public Open Space to do a short presentation on the management of the 
Councils Cemeteries Service 
 

 6. Highways Partnership and Call - Out to Incidents of Flooding   
 

  The Head of Public Open Space to inform Members of the current situation on the 

Town Hall
Market Street

Chorley
Lancashire
PR7 1DP

 



2 

termination of the Highways Partnership and the effect it may have on the call - out 
and response to reported incidents of flooding.  
 

 7. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2005/06  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

  A copy of the 2005/06 Work Programme is enclosed for consideration 
 

 8. Any other item(s) that the Chair decides is/are urgent   
 

 
 
Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief Executive 
 
 
Distribution 
 

1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

(Councillor McGowan (Chair), Councillors D Dickinson, T Gray, Caunce, Heaton, Iddon, R 

Lees, M Lowe, Livesey and S Smith) for attendance. 

 

2. Agenda and reports to Head of Public Open Space and Head of Environmental Services for 

attendance. 

 

3. Agenda and reports to Executive Leader (Councillor J Wilson) Deputy Leader (Councillor 

Edgerley) Leader of Conservative Group (Councillor P Goldsworthy), Leader of Liberal 

Democrat Group (Councillor K Ball) and Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(Councillor J Walker) for information. 

 

4. Agenda and reports to all remaining Chief Officers for information. 

 

5. Agenda and reports to all remaining Members of the Council for information. 
 

This information can be made available to you in larger print 

or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.  

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service. 
 

 
 

z 

01257 515822 



3 

 

 

01257 515823 



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment Overview & Scrutiny Panel 1  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 10 November 2005 

Environment Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

Thursday, 10 November 2005 
 

Present: Councillor McGowan (Chair) and Councillors D Dickinson, T Gray, Heaton, Miss Iddon, 
Livesey and M Lowe 
 
 

 
 

05.ENV.33 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Caunce and R Lees. 
 

05.ENV.34 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS  
 
No Member declared an interest in relation to matters under consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

05.ENV.35 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Environmental Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel held on 6 October 2005 be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

05.ENV.36 BUSINESS PLAN AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING FOR 2005/06 - FIRST 
QUARTER UPDATE  
 
The Panel received the first quarter update of the Business Plans for the former 
Planning Services that had been deferred from the last meeting of the Panel. 
 
The Panel AGREED to note the Business Plan for the period 1 April to 31 July 2005. 
 

05.ENV.37 BUSINESS PLAN AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORTS - SECOND 
QUARTER UPDATES  
 
The Panel received the second quarter updates of the Business Plans for the under 
mentioned services and functions falling within the remit and area of responsibility of 
the Panel. 
 
Environmental Services 
Public Space Services 
 
The Panel received from the Head of Environmental Services the significant 
improvement in the Best Value indicator BV199a relating to street dirtiness (litter and 
detritus) resulted from inspections carried out by the Neighbourhood Wardens.  The 
report covered the period of the enhanced recycling implementation phase two and 
the two months following.  Recycling performance was above target and reflected 
seasonal variations due to garden waste collections showing the composted waste 
figure. 
 
A higher than anticipated demand for additional containers for kerbside recycling in 
particular the collection of glass and paper had shown a significant increase in 
tonnages collected. 
 
The Panel raised issues relating to flooding incidents caused by leaf fall. 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 1



Environment Overview & Scrutiny Panel 2  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 10 November 2005 

The Panel noted that there had been an increase of incidents of fly-tipping in the area 
with an improvement in the Environmental Services performance for removal within 2 
working days. 
 
The Panel also received the Business Plan for Public Space Services with reference 
made to a pending consultation report on the management of the Council’s 
cemeteries and the construction of the extension to the Cemetery. 
 
The Panel AGREED  1) That the Business Plan update for the period 1 July to 30 
September 2005 be noted. 
 
2)  That the Head of Public Space Services submit to the Panels meeting on 5 
January 2006 a report on the background to the management of the Council’s 
cemeteries service, prior to the submission of the Consultant’s report referred 
to at the meeting. 
 

05.ENV.38 ACCESSIBILITY OF CYCLING AS A LEISURE PURSUIT  
 
The Panel received the findings and recommendations that had come out of the 
Panel’s inquiry entitled “Accessibility of Cycling as a Leisure Pursuit”. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and under mentioned recommendations be 
approved and forwarded to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 
consideration. 
 
Aims/Objective 
 
a) To highlight the areas of development and improvement 
 
 1. That those landowners who have shared user routes improve the 

environmental conditions by improving sight lines and visibility. 
 
 2. That the Council looks into the feasibility of creating short circular 

routes suitable only for families driving out to the country to take 
their children for a five mile ride as exists in National Parks and some 
Access Areas. 

 
 3. That the Council looks into  the feasibility of creating a mountain 

bike trail in Rivington which would be a year round activity and 
would be good for the local economy. 

 
 4. That the Council looks into the feasibility of creating a purpose build 

off-road leisure track for  youngsters and children in Yarrow Valley 
Park (Youths and youngsters with support to take over the design 
and maintenance of this facility which would enhance the vision that 
the Council is considering sports for all and encouraging 
children/youths to have a “Healthy Lifestyle”. 

 
 5. That the Council looks into the feasibility of creating a safe cycle 

route along the Yarrow Valley and River Goit between White Coppice 
and Anglezarke. 

 
 6. That the Council examines ways to improve the publicity of existing 

routes. 
 
Aims/Objectives 
 
a) To reduce the confrontation between the various activities 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 2



Environment Overview & Scrutiny Panel 3  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 10 November 2005 

 7. That the Council facilitates the education of users by a Code of 
Conduct to focus on the rights and responsibilities of all user groups 
in order to reduce ambiguities concerning issues such as rights of 
way, passing etiquette, the increased use of bells, control of dogs 
and the recommended speeds that should be adjusted for safety and 
courtesy. 

 
 8. That those landowners who have shared use routes should have 

information panels to the access points detailing the Code of 
Conduct and a contact point to where comments, complaints and 
conflicts can be reported. 

 
 9. That the Council looks into the feasibility of funding cycling and 

proficiency schemes within the Borough.  (NB  already a LCC 
function via Education in Schools). 

 
c) Aims/Objectives 
 
 To identify the current areas and can they be extended 
 
 10. That the responsible authority be requested to improve both off-road 

and the SUSTRANS route 55 through Chorley as well as developing 
the route through Chorley to join up the route from Preston to Wigan. 

 
 11. That the responsible authority be requested to complete the 

SUSTRANS route 55 as far as Adlington, to provide the connecting 
route via route 91 to the Rivington areas, as well as forming the 
primary route where other on/off road cycling schemes can join to 
form a hub in the future. 

 
 12. That the Council examines ways of better provision to encourage 

children to cycle to school; this would ease local traffic congestion.  
For example the off-road cycling scheme along Foxholes Road (near 
Tesco’s supermarket), but stops abruptly at the roundabout where it 
matters.  This scheme should be extended along Balshaw Lane; the 
road is wide enough, if the grass verge was used on both sides of 
the road.  This needs some commitment, it has been done in many 
towns elsewhere. 

 
 13. Where an off-road scheme finishes the cyclist is left to rejoin the 

highway, by a halt sign, as in the design on the A6 at Cuerden and 
A581 at Euxton.  A good design has been used in Blackburn. 

 

05.ENV.39 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2005/06  
 
The Panel received the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme and discussed the 
items relating to the Environment Panel. 
 
Referring to the Panel’s previous inquiry into flooding, flood prevention and 
contingency plans, Members asked what effect the termination of the Lancashire 
Highways Partnership would have on the contingency plans and standard of response 
in times of flooding. 
 
RESOLVED – 1)  That the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme be noted. 
 
2)  That the Head of Public Space Services submit a report to the Panels 
meeting on 5 January 2006 on the effects the termination of the Highways 
Partnership would have on the call-out and response to reported incidents of 
flooding. 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 3



Environment Overview & Scrutiny Panel 4  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 10 November 2005 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 4



ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/91252AJS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME – 2005/06 
 

 

Function/topic 
Assigned 

to 
 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

 
J 

1. Holding the Executive to Account OSC             

 Annual Budget/Council House Rents        3      

 Annual Budget Consultation      3  3      

 Provisional full year Performance Indicator          3    

ESP    �   � � � �  
� 

Com SP    �   � � � �  
� 

 Business Plan and Performance Indicator 
Updates 

Cust SP    �   � � � �  
� 

 OSC    �   � � � �  � 

 BVPP (Corporate Plan overall performance)  �            

 Monitoring of Sickness Absence (6 monthly 
update) 

      �     
 

� 

2. Policy Development and Review              

 Other to be identified              

3. External Scrutiny/Community Concern Full 
Scrutiny Inquiry 

             

Public Participation/Communication ComSP             

LCC’s arrangement for the Scrutiny of health 
function – Periodic Review 

CustSP 
   

3 
        

 Parkwise Scheme  CustSP             

4.  Monitoring of Inquiries              

 Housing Maintenance Appointments System CustSP   �      �    

 Flooding, Flood Prevention and Contingency 
 Plan/Proposals 

ESP      �      � 

 Chorley Markets - Occupancy of Stalls & 
 Associated Matters 

CustSP   �      �    

 Juvenile Nuisance  ComSP             

 Grass Cutting ESP      �      � 

 Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley ComSP       3      

 One-Stop Shop CustSP       3      

 Accessibility of Cycling as a Leisure Pursuit ESP            � 

5. Other              

 O & S Training Programme OSC   3      �    
              

 
OSC      -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee                        ESP      -  Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 
ComSP -  Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel             CustSP  -  Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 5



 

ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/91252AJS 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Topics/Issues to be Programmed 
 

Ref Topic/Issue Title Date 
Included 

Priority 
Score 

Source Brief Description 

  
Full Scrutiny Inquiries 
 
Priority List 
 
IEG Measurement of Council’s progress 
(Cust SP) 
 
 
 
 
Reserve List 
 
 
 
 
Policy Development/Review 
 
Priority List 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reserve List 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
26/06/03 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
4 and 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Referred to Customer O & S Panel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 7

A
g
e
n

d
a
 P

a
g

e
 6


